
GOVERNORS STATE 
UNIVERSITY 

Board of Trustees Meeting 

April 24, 2025

Engbretson Hall 

For Public



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Tab 1 
Agenda ................................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Tab 2 
March 10, 2025 Meeting Minutes (Open & Closed) ..................................................................................... 5 

Tab 3 
Resolution 25-23  ............................................................................................................................................. 14 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TAB 1 

BOT001



BOT Special Meeting 042425 

GOVERNORS STATE UNIVERSITY - BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
Engbretson Hall 

April 24, 2025 – Board of Trustee Special Meeting at 3:00 PM  
 

Chair James Kvedaras    
 

Time  Item Tab #’s 
    

3:00 pm* I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  
    

3:02 pm II. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT  
    

3:04 pm III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Consistent with Public Act 91-0715 and reasonable constraints 
determined by the Board of Trustees, at each regular or special 
meeting of the Board or its committees that is open to the public, 
members of the public may request a brief time on the approved 
agenda of the meeting to address the Board on relevant matters 
within its jurisdiction.   

 

    
3:15 pm IV. CHAIR’S COMMENTS 

Chair Kvedaras 
 

    
3:17 pm V. INTERIM PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS 

Dr. Corey S. Bradford, Sr. 
 

    
3:18 pm VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

Please note: Items may be removed from the consent agenda on 
the request of any one Trustee, without conducting a vote. Items 
not removed will be adopted by general consent without debate. 
Removed items will be taken up later in the Agenda as action 
items and may be discussed in Closed Session as appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  APPROVE PROPOSED AGENDA FOR APRIL 24, 2025, BOT 
MEETING 

1 

  APPROVE MEETING MINUTES FROM MARCH 10, 2025, BOARD OF 
TRUSTEE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING (OPEN AND 
CLOSED SESSIONS) 

2 
 

    
3:21 pm VII. PROPOSED ACTION ITEMS 

Presentation and discussion of action items proposed for Board of 
Trustees Meeting as scheduled for today. 

 
1. Resolution 25-23: Consideration, Selection and Approval of 

the Presidential Contract. 

 
 
 
 

3 
 
 

BOT002



2 

Presenter: Mr. Joshua Allen, Vice President of Human 
Resources  

                                                                                                                
3:22 pm VIII. CLOSED MEETING, IF APPLICABLE  

  According to Section 2(c) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 
120, the Board may meet in closed session to consider certain 
topics, including but not limited to: 
 

• The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 
performance, or dismissal of specific employees pursuant 
to Section 2(c)(1) 

 

    
  BREAK - RECONVENE THE ROOM (10-MINUTES)  
    

3:30 pm IX. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS 
1. Resolution 25-23: Consideration, Selection and Approval of 

the Presidential Contract. 
Presenter: Mr. Joshua Allen, Vice President of Human 
Resources  

 

    
3:35 pm XI. ADJOURN  

 
 

Notice to GSU Community and Members of the Public 
 

1) If you require accommodations to participate fully in the meeting, please contact Janelle A. Crowley, 
Ph.D., by 5 pm on Monday, April 21, 2025, to make this request.  
 
2) If you wish to watch the meeting remotely via Zoom, a link is provided below. The Chair asks anyone 
who is interested in attending the meeting to log on ten (10) minutes prior to the start of the meeting, 
to minimize disruption once the meeting is in session. If you wish to speak, you must raise your hand, 
the moderator will advise the Chair, whereby you must be recognized by the Chair to be eligible to 
speak. 
 
3) If you wish to make a public comment, please register in advance by contacting Janelle A. Crowley, 
Ph.D., by 5 pm on Monday, April 21, 2025.  
 
You are invited to a Zoom meeting for the Board of Trustee meeting. 
 
Please click the General Invitation link below to join virtually: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83551597416?pwd=Rk1VLL2t8PS2HzcTqnGIIzdCtdaozx.1 

BOT003

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F83551597416%3Fpwd%3DRk1VLL2t8PS2HzcTqnGIIzdCtdaozx.1&data=05%7C02%7Cjcrowley3%40govst.edu%7Cb0310d8e5f5d4c798bb308dd76a33a01%7Cb86dab28987f4cada951ce05b68601ab%7C0%7C0%7C638797165619067918%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=10iLQOIjjcwB4R8zq0ZiEqKG%2B3a1viE0mRTJToSBaVY%3D&reserved=0


3 

Telephone or One Tap: US: + 13092053325, 83551597416# or +13126266799, 83551597416#  
Passcode: 585774 

Webinar ID: 835 5159 7416 

Contact Information: Janelle A. Crowley, Ph.D.; jcrowley3@govst.edu; 708.235.6807. 
 
*All times are estimates. 

BOT004



TAB 2 

BOT005



1  

 Board of Trustees  
For Review 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF  
GOVERNORS STATE UNIVERSITY SPECIAL MEETING  

 

A special meeting of the Board of Trustees of Governors State University (the “Board” and 

“GovState,” respectively), an Illinois body politic and corporate, was held in person and via audio-

videoconference at GovState’s University Park Campus in Engbretson Hall on March 10, 2025, 

beginning at approximately 9:30 am. The purpose of the meeting was to conduct the business 

described in the Agenda posted for public notice before 9:00 am on March 5, 2025 in accordance 

with Section 120/2.02 of the Illinois Open Meetings Act. 5 ILCS 120/ et seq. Before the meeting, 

each Trustee received materials corresponding to the action items in the Agenda, copies of which 

are maintained with the Board records. 

 

I. MEETING DETAILS 

Meeting Chair: James Kvedaras 

Minutes Recorded By: Therese King Nohos, General Counsel 

 

II. ATTENDEES 

Chair Kvedaras confirmed a quorum was present given the presence of the following Trustees in 

attendance in person at the start of the meeting unless otherwise noted: 

• Stacy Crook, Vice Chair and Trustee; 

• Frances Kao, Trustee (via videoconference); 

• James Kvedaras, Chair; 

• Karen Nunn, Trustee and Secretary;  

• Harish Rayalapati, Student Trustee; and 

• Anibal Taboas. 

President Corey S. Bradford, Sr., was present, as were the following members of the President’s 

Cabinet who appeared in person: 

• Joshua R. Allen, MPS, SHRM-SCP, Vice President of Human Resources; 

BOT006



2  

• Janelle A. Crowley, PhD, Chief of Staff, President’s Office; 

• William Davis, Vice President, External Affairs 

• Maureen Kelly, Executive Director, Government Relations; 

• Paul McGuinness, MA, Vice President for Student Affairs and Enrollment 
Management; 

• Therese King Nohos, JD, Vice President, General Counsel; 

• Patricia O’Neal, Executive Assistant to the President; 

• Joi F. Patterson, PhD, Chief of Institutional Engagement and Excellence; and 

• Beverly Schneller, PhD, Vice President, Provost and Chief Academic Officer. 

 

Faculty Senate President Josh Sopiarz and Civil Service President Susie Morris were present as well. 

 

III. ABSENCES 

Trustee Judith Mitchell. 

 

IV. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Kvedaras at approximately 9:30 am. 

 

V. LAND ACKNOWLDGEMENT  

Dr. Patterson read the University’s Land Acknowledgement Statement. 

 

VI.   CHAIR’S COMMENTS  

Chair Kvedaras welcomed new Trustees Frances Kao and Judith Mitchell to the Board. As part of 

the Agenda, Chair Kvedaras noted there would be a closed session to consider feedback regarding 

the presidential search. Chair Kvedaras thanked the search committee and all those who filled out a 

survey providing feedback on the candidates for their service.  

  

BOT007



3  

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Chair Kvedaras called for public comment. Rebecca Siefert, Associate Professor of Art History in 

the College of Arts and Sciences, gave a public comment. 

 

VIII. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Chair Kvedaras asked for a motion to approve the meeting’s Consent Agenda. Trustee Taboas so 

moved, and Trustee Crook seconded. The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 

 

IX. CLOSED SESSION 

Chair Kvedaras called for a motion to go into closed session pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the 

Illinois Open Meetings Act. Trustee Nunn so moved, and Trustee Crook seconded. The motion 

passed unanimously on a roll call vote. Closed session began at approximately 9:40 am. Open 

session resumed at approximately 10:55 am with Chair Kvedaras noting that no final action had 

taken place during closed session. 

 

X. PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS 

Dr. Corey S. Bradford, Sr. noted that he is deeply honored to accept the position of interim 

president of Governors State University with humility and gratitude, following the remarkable 

tenure of President Green, whose visionary leadership positioned the University for continuous 

success and growth. Under Dr. Green’s stewardship, he noted that Governors State has achieved 

significant milestones including academic excellence, student success, fiscal health, and community 

engagement. Dr. Bradford expressed looking forward to working with GovState’s exceptional 

faculty, staff, students, alumni and community partners to uphold GovState’s high standards. Dr. 

Bradford thanked each member of the Board of Trustees for their confidence in his ability to serve 

in this capacity. 

 

XI. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

Informational items set forth in the agenda were presented next as follows. 

• First, Mr. Kristoffer Evangelista, Chief Internal Auditor, presented the Internal Audit 

Report. He presented an overview of the Institute of Internal Auditors’ (IIA) professional 

standards, the Internal Audit reporting line, and the role of Board oversight. One of the key 

accomplishments for the past fiscal year included completion of five audit reviews resulting 

BOT008



4  

in over 30 recommendations (but no findings of material weaknesses). For fiscal year 2025, 

eight audits and review engagements are planned pursuant to the internal audit plan 

approved by President Green in June 2024. 

• Next, Dr. Nicole Bing, Associate Professor in the Department of Communication 

Disorders, addressed the Board on the department’s experience at the 2025 Illinois Speech 

Language and Hearing Association’s Annual Conference. Dr. Bing noted that 11 students 

were able to attend.  

• Next, Angelica Damiani, Program Director of the Veterans Resource Center, presented on 

GovState’s support to our military community. She noted that some of the University’s 

services include processing state and federal benefits for student veterans and family 

members and serving as the liaison with state and federal agencies. She noted they also do 

campus programming and are now expanding into community outreach, thanks to the 

VISTA program. Ms. Damiani noted that Will County has the third highest number of 

veterans of all the counties in Illinois. 

 

XII. PROPOSED ACTION ITEMS 

The Board then was presented with the following action items to consider consistent with the 

agenda.  

 

First, President Bradford presented Resolution 25-19 regarding approval of honorary degree 

candidates’ eligibility for selection pursuant to Board Regulation III(B)(2). Chair Kvedaras called for 

a motion to approve the resolution as presented. Trustee Nunn so moved, and Trustee Crook 

seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Second, President Bradford presented Resolution 25-22 regarding approval for the revised internal 

audit charter, as adopted by the State of Illinois. Chair Kvedaras called for a motion to approve 

resolution 25-22 as presented. Trustee Crook so moved, and Trustee Taboas seconded the motion. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no other old or new business, Chair Kvedaras then asked for a motion to adjourn. 

Trustee Crook so moved; Trustee Taboas seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

BOT009



5  

The meeting adjourned at 11:45 am. 

 
 
Approved this 24th day of April 2025 
 

 

 

 
 

James Kvedaras, Chair 

 
 

Karen Nunn, Secretary 

 

 

 

BOT010



TAB 3 

BOT014



Board of Trustees 
April 24, 2025 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Resolution No. 25-23 
 
 

Approval of Employment Agreement 
with Joyce Ester, Ph.D. 

 
WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of Governors State University (the “Board” and 

“University,” respectively) was created on January 1, 1996, by Public Act 89-4 to operate, manage, 

control, and maintain the University in accordance with the rights, powers, and duties vested by law 

in the Board;  

 
WHEREAS, The Board is comprised of eight members, seven of whom are appointed by 

the Governor of Illinois with the advice and consent of the Senate, and one of whom is a University 

student selected by student peers;  

 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Sections 40 and 45(c) of the Illinois Governors State University 

Law (“IGSUL”), 110 ILCS 670/15, the Board has both the authority to enter into contracts and the 

authority to employ a President of Governors State University;  

 

WHEREAS, The University’s sixth president resigned effective March 1, 2025;  

 

WHEREAS, The Board convened a cross-functional search committee and retained an 

external search firm to conduct a nationwide search for the University’s seventh president; 

 

WHEREAS, The Board finds that it is in the University’s best interests to appoint Joyce 

Ester, Ph.D. as the University’s seventh president; 

 

WHEREAS, An employment agreement has been negotiated with Dr. Ester as a result of 

extensive arms’-length negotiations, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Employment 

Agreement”);  

 

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 185(6) of the IGSUL, “[p]ublic notice, compliant with 

BOT015



2  

the provisions of the Open Meetings Act, must be given prior to the final action on the formation, 

renewal, extension, or termination of the employment contracts of the president . . . and must 

include a copy of the Board item or other documentation providing, at a minimum, a description 

of the principal financial components of the president’s . . . appointments”; and 

 

WHEREAS, The proposed Employment Agreement was posted to the Board’s webpage 

and to the University’s principal office for public review. 

 

Now, therefore, it is: 
 
 

Resolved, that the Board appoints Joyce Ester, Ph.D. as the University’s seventh president, 

effective July 1, 2025. 

 

Resolved, that the Board approves the Employment Agreement in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit A with instructions to amend as necessary to correct any typographical or 

other immaterial errors.  

 

Resolved, that the Board directs the Chair to execute the Employment Agreement (as 

corrected) on behalf of the University. 

 

Resolved, that the Board directs the University to take all reasonable and necessary steps to 

otherwise effectuate this Resolution. 

 

Approved this 24th day of April 2025 
 

 

 

 
 

James Kvedaras, Chair 

 
 

Karen Nunn, Secretary 

 

 

BOT016



 

1 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), by and between Joyce Ester, Ph.D. 
(“Dr. Ester” or the “President”) and the Board of Trustees of Governors State University (as a 
body politic and corporate pursuant to 110 ILCS 670/15 “the University,” and when referred to as 
a board of trustees of the University itself, “the Board”). 

WITNESS 

WHEREAS, Dr. Ester has been appointed to the position of President of the University 
effective July 1, 2025; 

WHEREAS, both the University and Dr. Ester desire to set forth their respective rights and 
obligations with respect to this appointment in this Agreement; 

WHEREAS, this Agreement has been duly approved and its execution has been duly 
authorized on behalf of the Board; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions 
contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

A. Term.  

The University shall employ Dr. Ester as its President for a term of three (3) years from 
July 1, 2025 through July 1, 2028 (the “Term”), except as provided in Section G (“Termination”). 
By no later than October 31, 2027, the Board and Dr. Ester shall convey their respective intent to 
renew or extend the Term of this Agreement.  Based on any mutual intent to extend the Term, the 
parties shall work in good faith to complete a writing governing such continued employment by 
no later than March 1, 2028. Dr. Ester hereby accepts such employment on the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement.  

B. Powers and Duties. 

During the Term of this Agreement, Dr. Ester shall perform those services and duties that 
are consistent with her position as President of the University, that are required of the President of 
the University under the Governors State Board of Trustees Bylaws (“Board Bylaws”), Governors 
State Board of Trustees Governing Policies (“Board Policies”), Governors State Board of Trustees 
Regulations (“Board Regulations”), or any other rules and regulations of the University, or which 
may be lawfully assigned to the President by or under the authority of the Board consistent with 
her position as President of the University (collectively, the “Duties”); and Dr. Ester shall devote 
her full business time, abilities, talent, attention, skill and efforts to the faithful performance of the 
Duties for the University. 

 
Dr. Ester and the Board acknowledge and agree that the Duties hereunder shall be limited 

to those duties customarily performed by presidents of public universities comparable in size and 
type to the University, such as (but not limited to): 
 

BOT017



2 

• Creating and nurturing a campus culture consistent with the University’s mission, vision,
and core values;

• Creating a leadership culture of ethics, accountability, transparency, and integrity;
• Strategic and long-term planning (subject to Board approval);
• Developing and supporting diversity, equity, and inclusion initiatives subject to then-

applicable federal and state laws and regulations;
• Maintaining primary control over and responsibility for University athletics;
• Fostering faculty and community relations;
• Managing public relations;
• Building relationships with federal, state, and local governments;
• Creating and managing with financial accountability;
• Developing and managing a budget;
• Overseeing fundraising, development, and alumni relations;
• Protecting freedom of expression and academic freedom;
• Ensuring access and equality of educational opportunity;
• Supervising student services;
• Supervising University buildings, grounds, and equipment;
• Overseeing the recruitment, appointment, promotion, and dismissal of all staff and faculty

members; and
• Maintaining a visible presence on campus and at campus events;
• Performing such other duties as may be reasonably determined by the Board or as stated in

the Board Bylaws, Policies, or Regulations.

These Duties shall be rendered at the University’s Campus in University Park, Illinois and
at such other place or places as the Board shall deem appropriate for the interest, needs, business, 
or opportunity of the institution.  

In the event Dr. Ester will be absent from the University and not accessible for a period of 
five (5) business days or more, Dr. Ester shall disclose this information to the Board. 

C. Compensation.

1. Annual Base Salary. The University shall pay to Dr. Ester an initial
annualized base salary (the “Base Salary”), less applicable deductions. The Base Salary shall be 
$305,000 during the 2025-2026 academic year, payable in equal monthly installments subject to 
the availability of funding by the State of Illinois. The Base Salary may be increased at the 
discretion of the Board. The Board of Trustees and Dr. Ester agree that Dr. Ester’s Base Salary 
may increase on an annual basis by three percent (3%), if her performance in a year supports an 
increase for the following year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any adjustment to Dr. Ester’s Base 
Salary will be determined in the Board’s sole and absolute discretion as part of the performance 
evaluation process outlined in Section D and shall further be dependent on funding by the State of 
Illinois. There is no guarantee of an increase and there is no minimum annual increase, but there 
will be no decrease, to Dr. Ester’s Base Salary. Dr. Ester’s salary will be paid in accordance with 
this Agreement and will not be subject to University-wide adjustments in salary paid to any other 
University employee. 

BOT018



 

3 
 

2. Performance Bonus.  Based on a fiscal year of July 1 through June 30, the 
University shall annually pay Dr. Ester a lump sum amount up to twenty-five thousand dollars 
($25,000.00), representing an annual discretionary “Performance Bonus” payment based on the 
Board’s annual evaluation of her performance as stated in Section D, and pursuant to 110 ILCS 
670/15-190. It is within the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees to determine whether the 
Performance Bonus payment has been earned. If the Board of Trustees concludes Dr. Ester’s 
performance meets expectations she may receive her annual Performance Bonus, but the ultimate 
decision as to whether such bonus will be paid rests with the Board.  All performance bonuses will 
be paid in a single lump sum payment within thirty (30) days of the determination to award such 
bonus.  

The University shall endeavor to determine whether the Performance Bonus payment has been 
earned following the applicable University fiscal year relating to the Performance Bonus payment, 
beginning after July 1, 2026 no later than November 1 of the fiscal year following the fiscal year 
in which the Performance Payment was earned.  

3. Retirement Contribution. By August 1 of each year of this Agreement, 
the University will make annual contributions to a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 
(“SERP”) for the benefit of Dr. Ester in an amount equal to five percent (5%) of her total annual 
compensation, which consists of Base Salary and any Performance Bonus awarded in the prior 
fiscal year. For the avoidance of doubt, the first such annual contribution shall be due August 1, 
2026 and shall relate to the total annual compensation earned in fiscal year 2026 ending on June 
30, 2026. All SERP contributions will be made consistent with the requirements of a deferred 
compensation 457(f) plan, which will provide for vesting and payment to Dr. Ester upon the 
earliest to occur of completion of the Term so long as Dr. Ester is in good standing as an employee 
of the University on that date, or  upon termination of her employment without Cause (as defined 
in Section G.1 infra), for death, disability, or resignation for Good Reason (as defined in Section 
G.3 infra).  

  
D. Annual Performance Evaluation. 

In accordance with 110 ILCS 670/15-190, on or before September 1, 2025 and on 
each September 1st thereafter, Dr. Ester shall set forth goals and objectives, to be accomplished by 
the following June 30th, and deliver the same to the Board or its designated committee for review 
and approval. On or before September 1 of each year thereafter, Dr. Ester shall provide to the 
Board or its designated committee (1) a written self-appraisal of her performance for the previous 
year as compared to each of the goals and objectives determined the previous year, and (2) her 
goals and objectives for the then-current fiscal year. The Board or its designated committee shall 
then evaluate her performance and provide written feedback based on Dr. Ester’s achievement of 
the prior year’s goals and objectives. The Board or its designated committee shall also provide 
feedback for, or approve, Dr. Ester’s stated goals and objectives for the then-current fiscal year. 
The Parties may negotiate said goals and objectives, but they must be approved by the Board 
annually. To aid the Board in its operations and ongoing evaluation of Dr. Ester’s performance, 
Dr. Ester also agrees to furnish to the Board such additional oral or written reports as it may 
request. 

BOT019



 

4 
 

E. Benefits and Reimbursements. 

1. Standard Benefits. Dr. Ester shall be eligible to participate in all benefits, 
including health and dental care coverage, life and disability insurance, retirement and workers 
compensation, tuition reimbursement, and any other benefits or plans provided for senior 
administrative and professional employees of the University as authorized by law, and Board 
Policy or Board Regulations, and in accordance with the terms and provisions of any such plan or 
benefit program. 

2. Leave Benefits. Dr. Ester shall receive all leave benefits, including vacation 
and sick leave benefits, as provided for senior administrative and professional employees of the 
University pursuant to the Board Bylaws, Board Regulations, and Board Governing Policies. At 
all times, the vacation and sick leave provided to Dr. Ester shall be in full compliance with 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. However, Dr. Ester shall not 
take vacation, personal, or professional leave if such leave interferes with properly discharging 
the duties under the terms of this Agreement, unless providing such additional leave is required 
by law.  

3. General Employee Benefits. Dr. Ester shall be eligible for any other 
general employee benefits not contained in this Agreement afforded to administrative and 
professional employees of the University as authorized by law, Board Policy, Board Bylaws, or 
Board Regulations. Dr. Ester shall be eligible for indemnification during and after her 
employment with the University consistent with the State Employee Indemnification Act, 5 ILCS 
350, as same may be amended from time to time. If indemnification is required, Dr. Ester’s legal 
counsel shall be selected pursuant to the terms of any applicable insurance policy; provided that 
if there is no insurance policy, such counsel shall be selected by Dr. Ester subject to the approval 
of the Board, which approval shall not unreasonably be withheld. Reasonable grounds for denial 
shall include but not be limited to excessive hourly rates, reputational concerns, or lack of subject 
matter expertise. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

4. Travel, Entertainment and Other Business Expenses. The University 
will provide reimbursement for all reasonable expenses incurred by Dr. Ester in her official 
capacity as University President consistent with the requirements of applicable Illinois and federal 
law, Board Policies, Board Bylaws, and Board Regulations. Dr. Ester will be required to present 
receipts or other reasonable supporting information requested by the University, and consistent 
with applicable federal and state laws and regulations, for all expenses reimbursements. Dr. 
Ester’s travel expenses may be reviewed at least annually by the Board or its designee who does 
not report to Dr. Ester. Dr. Ester must exercise discretion and good judgment, in the best interests 
of the University, in incurring expenses on its behalf.  

5. Relocation.  The University shall pay the costs incurred and substantiated 
by receipts or other appropriate documentation (up to a maximum cost of $20,000) to relocate the 
President and her personal property to her residence in the vicinity of the University’s campus. 

6. Automobile. The University will provide Dr. Ester with a vehicle 
allowance of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per month in consideration of her expense of 
owning or leasing and maintaining a personal vehicle for the President’s use for University 

BOT020



 

5 
 

business and personal purposes. The automobile allowance will be taxable income to Dr. Ester.  
This allowance also is intended to include insurance, maintenance, fuel, and operating costs, 
which shall be purchased or borne by Dr. Ester without further reimbursement. 

7. Housing Allowance.  The University shall provide an annual housing 
allowance of thirty thousand dollars ($30,000) to Dr. Ester for her purchase or lease and 
maintenance of a personal residence appropriate for her position as President.  The housing 
allowance will be paid in equal monthly installment payments and shall be taxable income to Dr. 
Ester. As a condition of this benefit, Dr. Ester agrees to use her residence for University 
ceremonial, entertainment or business functions six times in each academic year, beginning in 
August 2025.  The University shall be fully responsible for all costs associated with such 
University functions occurring at Dr. Ester’s residence including event insurance, catering, 
associated cleaning, and entertainment expense. 

 
8. Professional Associations and Memberships. Dr. Ester shall be entitled 

to spend up to five thousand dollars ($5,000) annually in payment for professional activities and 
memberships that contribute to her abilities to fulfill her duties as President and relating to the 
mission of the University. These may include annual dues, membership fees and expenses for 
professional associations meetings and entertainment, and designated parking near events. This 
amount can be expended in Dr. Ester’s discretion, consistent with the above parameters. Dr. Ester 
will be required to present receipts or other reasonable supporting information requested by the 
University, and consistent with applicable federal and state laws and regulations.  

 

9. Facilities Use and Access. Dr. Ester will be furnished with a private office, 
secretarial assistance, a computer, a cellphone, and such other facilities and services reasonably 
necessary to the fulfillment of her duties. Dr. Ester and her immediate family shall be granted 
access privileges and cards to the University’s buildings and facilities, including its library. The 
University reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to restrict access to areas it deems sensitive or 
that it determines should otherwise be restricted. 

10. 409A Compliance. Although the University does not guarantee the tax 
treatment of any payments under the Agreement, the intent of the parties is that the payments and 
benefits under this Agreement be exempt from, or comply with, Section 409A of the Code, and all 
Treasury Regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder (“Code Section 409A”) and to the 
maximum extent permitted the Agreement will be limited, construed and interpreted in accordance 
with such intent. In no event whatsoever will the University or its affiliates or their respective 
officers, directors, employees or agents be liable for any additional tax, interest or penalties that 
may be imposed on Dr. Ester by Code Section 409A or damages for failing to comply with Code 
Section 409A. 

 Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, to the extent that 
any reimbursement of expenses constitutes “deferred compensation” under Code Section 409A, 
such reimbursement will be provided no later than December 31 of the year following the year in 
which the expense was incurred. The amount of expenses reimbursed in one year will not affect 
the amount eligible for reimbursement in any subsequent year. The amount of any in-kind benefits 
provided in one year will not affect the amount of in-kind benefits provided in any other year. 

BOT021



 

6 
 

 For purposes of Code Section 409A (including, without limitation, for purposes of Treasury 
Regulation Section 1.409A-2(b)(2)(iii)), the right to receive payments in the form of installment 
payments will be treated as a right to receive a series of separate payments and, accordingly, each 
installment payment will at all times be considered a separate and distinct payment.  Whenever a 
payment under this Agreement may be paid within a specified period, the actual date of payment 
within the specified period will be within the sole discretion of the University. 

F. Tax Reporting. 

The University shall include in the W-2 issued to Dr. Ester all payments, benefits, 
allowances, and reimbursements that are defined as income or otherwise required to be reported 
to the federal, state or local governments. 

G. Termination.  

1. Termination by University For Cause. The parties agree that the 
University may terminate this Agreement at any time for “Cause,” in the reasonable judgment of 
the Board, as evidenced by a majority vote of all Trustees then in office. Any such termination 
for Cause shall be effective immediately and Dr. Ester shall have no right to any compensation or 
benefits after the effective date of termination, except for those already accrued but unpaid. 
Grounds for Cause termination shall be the following: 

(a) Commission of fraudulent or knowingly dishonest activity by Dr. 
Ester, including but not limited to misappropriation of University funds or misuse 
of presidential resources;  

(b) Any act or omission that is a felony or crime of moral turpitude 
under the Illinois or federal criminal code, fraudulent, or otherwise involves an 
act of serious misconduct that causes or is reasonably foreseen to cause material 
harm to the University; or  

(c) Dr. Ester’s willful or repeated failure to perform material duties for 
the University (other than by reason of illness or disability) and/or comply with 
material rules and policies of the University, including those relating to 
discrimination, harassment, sexual misconduct, or improper fraternization as 
determined by the Board, including but not limited to fraternization with students, 
employees, donors, vendors, Board members, and alumni. The University will 
provide Dr. Ester with thirty (30) days to cure the deficiency, if curable. 

(d) A deliberate or serious violation of any written Board Policy, Board 
Bylaw, or Board Regulation, federal, state, or local law or regulation, which 
violation may, in the sole judgment of the Board, reasonably be foreseen to cause 
harm to the University.  

2. Termination Without Cause. The University may terminate this 
Agreement upon a majority vote of the members of the Board then in office and providing thirty 
(30) days prior written notice to Dr. Ester. Termination of this Agreement by virtue of Dr. Ester’s 
disability or death (as set forth in Sections G.5 and G.6 of this Agreement, respectively) shall not 

BOT022



 

7 
 

be construed as termination without Cause. If the University terminates this Agreement without 
Cause prior to the expiration of the Term, Dr. Ester shall be entitled to, at her election, either 
severance pay or tenure at the level of full professor, but not both. The Board, in its sole discretion, 
may offer both options or only the option of severance pay. If severance pay is offered and is the 
selected option of Dr. Ester, it will be provided in an amount equal to twenty (20) weeks’ 
(“severance period”) pay at Dr. Ester’s then-applicable Base Pay (but no pro rata portion of her 
Incentive Compensation or SERP contribution). Severance payments shall also include payment 
of COBRA premiums for healthcare continuation for the severance period. Dr. Ester will also 
receive any other payments as set forth in the University’s various benefit plans with respect to 
vesting and rights after termination of employment. If, on the other hand, a tenured position is 
offered, the position will be in a University academic department applicable to Dr. Ester’s 
expertise, as determined by the Board and consistent with Dr. Ester’s academic background, and 
at a salary rate of the highest paid professor of the University. If Dr. Ester is offered and accepts 
a tenured position, she must work and meet the duties expected of tenured professors in that 
academic department. Her compensation, terms, and conditions of employment shall be governed 
by the Board Regulations, Board Bylaws, Board Policies, the Faculty Handbook, the faculty 
collective bargaining agreement between the University and the University Professionals of 
Illinois that is in effect that the time, and as the same may be amended, modified, or replaced from 
time to time.  

3. Resignation for Good Reason. Dr. Ester may resign for Good Reason by 
providing sixty (60) days’ written notice following an event constituting Good Reason. For 
purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shall mean an action by the University which (i) 
materially reduces or otherwise adversely affects the President’s title, status, duties or 
responsibilities with the University or (ii) fails to pay the President’s compensation under this 
Agreement in violation of this Agreement. The University shall have thirty (30) days to cure such 
condition constituting Good Reason, if curable, following receipt of the written notice from Dr. 
Ester. Upon a resignation for Good Reason, Dr. Ester will be entitled to severance payments and 
benefits in the same manner as though the President’s employment were terminated without Cause 
by the University. 

4. Resignation without Good Reason. This Agreement may also be 
terminated without Good Reason by Dr. Ester giving the University one hundred and eighty (180) 
days’ advance written notice of termination. Such notice must provide the final date of 
employment, after which time she shall not be entitled to any further compensation or benefits as 
President, except for (i) any unpaid wages through the date of termination; (ii) any unreimbursed 
expenses pending as of the effective date of termination; and (iii) any other payments as set forth 
in the University’s various benefit plans with respect to vesting and rights after termination of 
employment or as otherwise required by law. 

5. Disability. This Agreement shall terminate immediately if, as a result of 
her disability caused by any physical or mental injury, illness or incapacity, Dr. Ester is unable, 
or is projected in good faith by the Board to be unable, to effectively perform the essential 
functions of her duties, whether with or without a reasonable accommodation, for a continuous 
period of more than ninety (90) calendar days, or for a period aggregating ninety (90) calendar 
days in a twelve (12) month period, as determined by Dr. Ester’s physician or a physician chosen 

BOT023



 

8 
 

jointly by the University and Dr. Ester; provided, however, that this period may be extended in 
the sole discretion of the Board, and in all cases the University shall comply with applicable law. 

 
6. Death. In the event of the death of Dr. Ester during the Term of this 

Agreement, her compensation and benefits shall cease immediately, and this Agreement shall 
terminate effective on the date of death. Dr. Ester’s designated beneficiary or beneficiaries shall 
be entitled to receive any amounts earned but unpaid or due pursuant to the terms of benefit plans 
or applicable law provided by the University to Dr. Ester. 

 
7. Mutual Agreement. The parties may mutually agree in writing to terminate 

this Agreement at any time for reasons satisfactory to both parties. In such event, the terms and 
conditions associated with such early termination will be set out via mutual agreement between 
the parties.  

H. Outside Activities. 

The University recognizes that it is both appropriate and beneficial for the President to 
engage in outside activities, such as serving on for-profit and nonprofit boards of directors, 
consulting, delivering speeches, and writing, provided such activities do not interfere with her 
duties as President. The President shall obtain prior approval from the Board before agreeing to 
serve on the board of directors of any for-profit or nonprofit corporation, which approval shall 
not unreasonably be withheld. The President may not engage in any outside activity that conflicts 
with her duties to and responsibilities for the University, that are competitive with or adverse to 
the best interests of the University, or that violate any federal or state law. 

All income or other compensation earned by Dr. Ester in connection with her outside 
activities, if any, shall have no effect on the amount of salary, benefits, or other compensation to 
which she may be entitled to under this Agreement and shall be paid to and retained by Dr. Ester. 

Dr. Ester acknowledges that: (1) any such outside activities are not being undertaken on 
behalf of the University; (2) such activities shall not be covered by any of the University’s 
insurance policies; (3) the University shall not indemnify the President for any liability that arises 
in connection with any such outside activity; and (4) absent good cause and a showing that it will 
not adversely impact her duties and obligations to the University, Dr. Ester shall not engage in 
more than two (2) outside activities at any given time. 

I. Dispute Resolution. 

The parties agree that any controversy or claim that either party may have against the other 
arising out of or relating to Dr. Ester’s employment or association with the University, Dr. Ester’s 
compensation, the construction, application or enforcement of this Agreement, as well as any 
controversy or claim based upon the alleged breach of any legal right relating to or arising from 
Dr. Ester’s employment and/or termination of her employment shall be submitted to non-binding 
mediation. Within fifteen (15) days after delivery of a written notice of request for mediation from 
one party to the other, the dispute shall be submitted to a single mediator chosen by the parties 
and shall be mediated in Chicago, Illinois. The mediation will occur at a time and place convenient 
to the mediator and the parties. The costs and fees associated with mediator shall be paid equally 

BOT024



 

9 
 

by the University and Dr. Ester. The parties shall pay their own attorneys’ fees.  Participation in 
mediation does not toll any applicable statute of limitations, unless otherwise agreed upon by the 
Parties. 

In the event the mediation is not successful, the Illinois Court of Claims shall have 
jurisdiction and venue to hear any claim related to this Agreement. Nothing in this provision 
waives any claims of sovereign immunity that the University may bring in connection with such 
a lawsuit. 

J. Notice. 

All notices required or allowed by this Agreement shall be hand delivered or mailed by 
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. Unless and until changed by a party 
giving written notice to the other, the addresses below shall be the addresses to which all notices 
required or allowed by this Agreement shall be sent: 

If to the University or the Board: 
 
Office of General Counsel 
Governors State University 
1 University Parkway 
University Park, IL 60484 

If to Dr. Ester: 
 
Dr. Joyce Ester 
(Address then-listed on file with the University) 
 
With copy not constituting notice to:  
 
Tyrone Thomas, Esq. 
Holland & Knight LLP 
800 17th Street NW 
Suite 1100 
Washington, DC 20006 
 

K. Board Policy, Regulations, Bylaws.  

Reference in this Agreement to Board Policy, Board Bylaws, or Board Regulations shall be 
deemed to include an incorporate any amendments, modifications or replacements that may be 
enacted from time to time.  
  

BOT025



 

10 
 

L. Severability and Waivers. 

If any portion of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable, 
then, so far as possible, effect shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid, 
inoperative, or unenforceable, and the remainder of this Agreement not found invalid, inoperative, 
or unenforceable shall remain in full force and effect. No waiver or failure to enforce any or all 
rights under this Agreement by either party on any occasion shall constitute a waiver of that 
party’s right to assert the same or any other rights on that or any other occasion. 

M. Governing Law.  

This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Illinois, without regard to conflict of law principles, which shall be the forum for any lawsuit 
arising from or incident to this Agreement. 

N. Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original but all of which shall constitute but one of the same instrument. Signatures 
delivered by facsimile and by email shall be deemed to be an original signature for all purposes, 
including for purposes of applicable rules of evidence. 

O. Complete Agreement.  

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and fully supersedes 
any and all prior agreements or understandings, whether written or oral, between the parties 
pertaining to the matters set forth herein. This Agreement shall not be amended, modified, or 
changed other than by written agreement executed by Dr. Ester and the University. 

 
P. Waiver.  

 
No delay or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall constitute a waiver or 

limitation of rights enforceable under this Agreement. 
  
Q. Disclosure of Terms and Conditions.  
 
The Parties acknowledge that applicable law, including the Freedom of Information Act (5 

ILCS 140/) will govern the disclosure of the existence and terms of this Agreement.  

R. Miscellaneous. 

The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used in 
construing or interpreting this Agreement. The terms “Board,” “Board of Trustees,” and 
“University” as used in this Agreement, where applicable or appropriate, shall be deemed to 
include or refer to any duly authorized board, committee, officer, or employee of said entity. 
Whenever the context requires, the masculine shall include the feminine and neuter, the singular 
shall include the plural, and conversely. 
 

BOT026



 

11 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF GOVERNORS 
STATE UNIVERSITY 
 
By: _____________________________ 
 
James Kvedaras, Board Chair 
 
Date: ____________________________ 

JOYCE ESTER, PH.D. 
 
______________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________ 

 
 
 

BOT027


	FINAL BOARD BOOK_CONFIDENTIAL.pdf
	COVER PAGE.pdf
	TAB 1.pdf
	2025_04_17 AGENDA for BOT Special Meeting on April 24 2025.pdf
	TAB 2.pdf
	OPEN Minutes of The Board of Trustees of Governors State University Special Meeting March 10 2025.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
	GOVERNORS STATE UNIVERSITY SPECIAL MEETING
	I. MEETING DETAILS
	II. ATTENDEES
	III. ABSENCES
	IV. CALL TO ORDER
	V. LAND ACKNOWLDGEMENT
	Dr. Patterson read the University’s Land Acknowledgement Statement.
	VI.   CHAIR’S COMMENTS
	Chair Kvedaras welcomed new Trustees Frances Kao and Judith Mitchell to the Board. As part of the Agenda, Chair Kvedaras noted there would be a closed session to consider feedback regarding the presidential search. Chair Kvedaras thanked the search co...
	VII. PUBLIC COMMENT
	VIII. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
	Chair Kvedaras asked for a motion to approve the meeting’s Consent Agenda. Trustee Taboas so moved, and Trustee Crook seconded. The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote.
	IX. CLOSED SESSION
	Chair Kvedaras called for a motion to go into closed session pursuant to Section 2(c)(1) of the Illinois Open Meetings Act. Trustee Nunn so moved, and Trustee Crook seconded. The motion passed unanimously on a roll call vote. Closed session began at a...
	X. PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS
	Dr. Corey S. Bradford, Sr. noted that he is deeply honored to accept the position of interim president of Governors State University with humility and gratitude, following the remarkable tenure of President Green, whose visionary leadership positioned...
	XI. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	Informational items set forth in the agenda were presented next as follows.
	 First, Mr. Kristoffer Evangelista, Chief Internal Auditor, presented the Internal Audit Report. He presented an overview of the Institute of Internal Auditors’ (IIA) professional standards, the Internal Audit reporting line, and the role of Board ov...
	 Next, Dr. Nicole Bing, Associate Professor in the Department of Communication Disorders, addressed the Board on the department’s experience at the 2025 Illinois Speech Language and Hearing Association’s Annual Conference. Dr. Bing noted that 11 stud...
	 Next, Angelica Damiani, Program Director of the Veterans Resource Center, presented on GovState’s support to our military community. She noted that some of the University’s services include processing state and federal benefits for student veterans ...
	XII. PROPOSED ACTION ITEMS
	The Board then was presented with the following action items to consider consistent with the agenda.
	First, President Bradford presented Resolution 25-19 regarding approval of honorary degree candidates’ eligibility for selection pursuant to Board Regulation III(B)(2). Chair Kvedaras called for a motion to approve the resolution as presented. Trustee...
	Second, President Bradford presented Resolution 25-22 regarding approval for the revised internal audit charter, as adopted by the State of Illinois. Chair Kvedaras called for a motion to approve resolution 25-22 as presented. Trustee Crook so moved, ...
	XIII. ADJOURNMENT
	There being no other old or new business, Chair Kvedaras then asked for a motion to adjourn.
	Trustee Crook so moved; Trustee Taboas seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.
	The meeting adjourned at 11:45 am.

	CLOSED 2025_03_10 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes Closed Session.pdf
	MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
	GOVERNORS STATE UNIVERSITY SPECIAL MEETING
	OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE—CLOSED SESSION
	CONFIDENTIAL
	I. MEETING DETAILS
	II. ATTENDEES
	III. ABSENCES
	IV. CALL TO ORDER
	V. NEW BUSINESS/OLD BUSINESS
	First, the Board heard from AGB Search regarding the background checks they conducted on the three final candidates for president: Joyce Ester, PhD; Daniel Lopez, PhD; and Christoper Reber, PhD. AGB Search conducted Google searches, LexisNexis searche...
	Next, the Board conducted a nonfinal vote to determine the order in which candidates would be approached to discuss an offer, which offer will be subject to final Board approval at a future meeting. Each Trustee was asked to rank the candidates in the...
	Finally, the Board discussed parameters to enable the negotiation of an offer conditioned on final Board approval with Dr. Ester. They discussed a salary range, incentive compensation, contract term, housing allowance, vehicle allowance, and retiremen...
	VI. ADJOURNMENT

	TAB 3.pdf
	RESOLUTION 25-23 RE PRESIDENT'S EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT.pdf
	2025 Governors State University Employment Agreement (Dr. Joyce Ester) - FINAL (003).pdf

	TABLE OF CONTENTS.pdf



